

# **Minutes**

Minutes of the Bury Local Access Forum Meeting Held at Bury Town Hall on Wednesday 31st July 2019 at 1.30pm

## 1.0 Present

### **LAF Members**

Edgar Ernstbrunner (Chair)
Lesley Tierney
Irene Pope
Debra Batchelor
Fal Binns
John Ireland
Peter Varetto
Valerie Johnstone
Christine Taylor
John Southworth

#### **Also Present**

David Chadwick (LAF Secretary) - Bury MBC
Jon O'Connor - Bury MBC
Nik Taylor - National Trust
James Nevitt - MOD Access and Recreation Team
Major Phillip Ingledew - Security and Public Access Officer, DIO
Cllr Tony Cummings
Barry Smith - public

Apologies - No Apologies

		Action
2.0	Minutes of the Last Meeting Accepted as an accurate record of the meeting.	
3.0	Matters Arising No Matters Arising	
4.0	Draft Statement of Priorities – Processing Definitive Map Modification Orders  JOC introduced a draft Statement of Priorities for dealing with Definitive Map Modification Orders.  EE stated that it was quite straightforward and he was happy with it.	

		Action
	Discussions clarified that the numbered points were not in priority order. This clarification allowed the LAF to approve the Statement.	
5.0		
	EE mentioned that the North West Region LAF had discussed the existence of a Warcop Access Group which has been successful and wondered whether this could be introduced at Holcombe. PI responded that the group had been created in response to the decision of a public inquiry but he would take the request to Colonel Holden.  EE asked if there was a timescale for reinstatement of the permissive route.  PI replied that as all the signs indicating that the path was no longer available have been stolen, it can happen immediately. The aim is to publish the decision regionally in due course. It is intended that the information will be included on the website that publishes the firing times at Holcombe.  CT believed that access meetings would be beneficial to discuss issues that exist on the rights of way network across MOD land. A number of examples relating to signage and surface issues were highlighted.  PI pointed out that such matters should be addressed with the Highway Authority which is responsible for maintaining the public rights of way network.  Cllr Cummings asked if CT had made the Authority aware of the problems.  EE outlined the background to the footpath survey that has been completed which will include any issues on paths across MOD land.	

The proposals will go to Natural England for negotiation. Initially NT could only apply for non-definitive rights of way due to the crossover

locations have been suggested and it is possible that 100% funding

with the Highway Authority's duty to maintain. A number of

EE asked about the consolidation of the definitive map and suggested an action plan should be created as the matter should be given a high priority.

JOC suggested that extra resources would be required to take on the amount of work that the survey could generate alongside the bridleway claims that have been submitted. The Authority would look to estimate the resources that are going to be required to allow the matter to be considered further up the management chain. EE reminded JOC that it is a statutory duty to keep the Definitive map and statement up to date and it was clear that this was not

		Action
	being done. FB asked if the LAF and its members could lend some support by communicating the need to allocate more resources to public rights of way issues through letters to the appropriate persons. JOC said any such action would be of assistance.	
8.0	Prospective Capital Projects Update  DC distributed an updated list. Little had changed other than a slippage in proposed completion dates for bridge replacements and repairs to paths in Ramsbottom. The former is due to the need to prioritise bridge works on road bridges following on from the damage caused by the Boxing Day floods and the latter is due to the need to delay works to allow for ground nesting birds in a SSSI and to carry out an investigation for unexploded ordnance on MOD land. DC added that the list would include a lot more information at the next LAF as he is looking to add the information from the path survey and in particular the 85 paths that have been identified as obstructed.  PV asked that the landowner at Castle Farm be consulted on the new timings for the installation of the footbridge to be funded by the Peak and Northern Footpaths Society.  EE asked if there had been any increase in capital funding.  JOC confirmed that there has not been an increase.	
9.0	Officer Report  DC provided an update on some of the issues he has progressed since the last meeting. Reference was made to the completion of the annual vegetation clearance programme; Improvements to Footpath Number 150, Bury have been completed and the path was "officially opened" by James Frith MP; Long Distance Walkers Association have promised a contribution to improvement works to Footpath Number 19, Tottington in Redisher Woods; maps showing a circular walk around Burrs Country Park have been erected and appear to be popular; Ramsbottom Countryside Access Volunteers have continued to carry out works to paths in the area and applications have been submitted for Bee Network Funding on highways that include public rights of way in the vicinity of Elton Reservoir, Pimhole and Pilsworth.  EE stated that if he received details of the work and funding for Footpath Number 19, Tottington the matter would be presented to The Ramblers Area Executive Committee with a request for a contribution.	
10.0	Bridleway Strategy Update  IP updated the LAF on a number of potential bridleway routes.  1. Three Acres Farm, Hawkshaw Lane – IP is ready to make a DMMO application but is meeting with the landowner next Thursday to see what can be agreed.  2. Footpath Number 21, Walmersley Golf Club, Bury – Another application is ready to be submitted, but as it appears there is only one landowner – Walmersley Golf Club – she has written to them	

		Action
	but has not received a reply.  3. Old Kays Park, Tottington – IP submitted a DMMO application to DC. Most of the application runs across Council land.  IP added that she had a meeting with David Brown, Director of Operations to discuss the creation of more off-road routes for horses. A request was made for access to cycle routes and that walking and cycling strategies should include horse riding. It is estimated that cyclists contribute £3bn to the economy and horse riding creates £4.3bn, rising to £8bn if horse racing is included. This should be reflected in the provision of riding facilities.  IP also mentioned that including new routes as part of the Bee Networks might remove the need for some of the DMMO applications to be considered.	ACCIOIT
11.0	Any Other Business  IP asked for the views of the LAF members of the downgrading of byways to bridleways. This would be an issue as it would stop the use of traps and carriages.  DC responded that the proposal that led to the question was no longer under consideration.	
12.0	<b>Date and Time of Next Meeting</b> Wednesday 23 <sup>rd</sup> October 2019, Committee Room A, Town Hall at 1.30pm	